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Hemlock Fair Sign

1779 - Sunday, May 12 the Sullivan-Clinton
army crossed the flats at the foot of Hemlock
Lake, destroying the crops as they proceeded
up over the west hill toward Conesus Lake.
This action opened up the area for the early
settlers.

1796 - Philip Short built a cabin about 1/4
mile in the valley north of Hemlock Lake. He
was the forerunner of the Short family whose
members were numerous in the area for many
decades. (Arch  Merrilll book "The Lakes
Country") states that Roswell Bliss came about
1795 and built a cabin and a saw mill).

1797 - At about this same time Mr. Higby,
from Livonia, established a saw mill on the
outlet. Logs were coming in large quantities
down the lake from Springwater and logging
was taking place on the lake shore.

1798 - Mr. Seth Simons, from Bristol, came
and located a Grist Mill somewhere on the
outlet.

1800 - A hermit, named Maloy, came and built
a cabin on the west shore. He was a hunter
and trapper. The story is told that he had a
bad encounter with a black bear. Maloy must
have survived because he lived to tell about
the fight.

1801 - From this time on there was rapid
change all the way from Hemlock Lake to Big
Tree Rd. Many new settlers came. The saw
mills were producing lumber, slab cabins were
built and later on, frame buildings and
businesses.

1803 - Isaac Bishop opened a store in the
area near the foot of the lake which came to
be known as Gullburg. The area around the
Canadice outlet, where it crosses the main
road, became known as Glennville. Sometime
later, just east of the road a dam across the
outlet was built to back up the water and
provide water power for a Gristmill which was
built.

1OVO - 11ig 1OWHSIIP O LIivonida was 10rmeaq,
the Hemlock area being a part of it.

1829 - This was a banner year. A Post Office
was established in Hemlock, called the Post
Office of Hemlock Lake. Mail came in from
Gullburg, Glennville and Holden (later called
Jacksonville). The first postmaster was John
Van Fossen - 1/17/1829 - 10/18/36. The P.O.
became Hemlock, New York on December 12,
1895. S

1832 - The Archer family, early settlers, were
operating a saw mill on the outlet.

1838 - The Baptists of the area organized as
the 1st Baptist Church of Hemlock Lake, N.Y.
The building was erected in 1844 at a cost of
$ 1,400.00. It was located near the south end
of Hemlock Village and still stands.

1843 - A Methodist building was put up, which
was destroyed by fire in 1948 and the present
church was erected.

1845 - Jacksonville was probably in its hey-
day. According to an Historical Marker, which
was erected at the site by the Hemlock outlet
1 1/4 miles north-east of Hemlock, there were
130 houses, a brick yard, 10 mills and two
distilleries. Almost all of the village was gone
by 1850. The marker was installed in 1939 by
the efforts of E. Short, Frank Connor and
others.

1850 - The Plank Road - A Company was
organized in Rochester, N.Y. Much lumber
was available at that time, so they decided to
try planks. It is reported that 25 miles were
completed and a Toll-Gate erected at the
south end (where the Country Store is located
now, corner of Big Tree and Rt. 15A). The
road worked very well for a few years until the
lumber began to warp and twist. It finally got
so bad it was abandoned.

Metropolitan Hotel, Main St.

1850 - The Metropolitan Hotel on South Main
Street opened its doors for business aiter
being under construction for about two years.
There were three floors. The top floor was
used for a ball-room and with a stage, it
provided a great place for entertainment. An
addition was built on a few years later on the
south end.



